
June 17, 2009 D4 SBC Meeting Minutes  1 
(07-27-09 for distribution to SBC members) 

D4 Small Business Council Meeting Minutes 
DATE June 17, 2009 
TIME:  1:00- 2:30pm 

LOCATION: District 4, Mountain View Room  
 111 Grand Ave., Oakland, CA 

D4 CALTRANS STAFF PRESENT 
Dan McElhinney, Chief DDD 
Tony Anziano, Toll Bridge Manager 
Lenka Culik-Caro, DDD, Design 
Bob Finney, DDD, Construction 
Stewart D. Ng, DDD, Prog/Proj. Mgmt 
Nigel Blampied, Prog/ Proj. Mgmt 
Kim Byrne, Office of Business Mgmt 
Barbara Condie, Office Engineer 
George Crosby, Small Business Program 
Adriana Harris, Small Business Program 
Osayahde Nesbitt, Small Business Prog  
Stanley Ng,  Div.of Maintenance 
Trinity Nguyen, Consultant Services 
Derek Pool, Toll Bridge Small Bus. Prog. 
Saeed Safi, Construction 
Augusta Solano, Small Business Program 
Brian White, Office of Business Mgmt 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT 
Jacqueline Caldwell, Oakland African American 
Chamber of Commerce 
Paul Guerrero, CA Small Bus Entrepreneurs 
Eddy Lau, AAAE 
Leslie Sakai, AAAE 
Jesus Vargas, Hispanic Chamber of Commerce / WTS  
 
GUESTS 
Giovanna Brasfield, Padilla & Associates 
Julian Camacho, Hispanic Contractors Association 
Carrolyn Kubota, SBTRC 
Rick Ohlrich, East Bay SBDC 
Pat Padilla, Padilla & Associates 
Mary Proctor, Proctor Trucking 
Chris Williams, CJC Trucking 
MC Yu, AAAE 

 
Item #1: Introductions 

After welcoming everyone, Chief Deputy District Director Dan McElhinney announced that District Director 
Bijan Sartipi would be unable to attend today because he was at the Statewide Directors’ meeting in Southern 
California and he sends his regards. The meeting attendees introduced themselves. Mr. Julian Camacho said that 
he was attending for Mr. Guadalupe Thomas. Mr. Camacho also mentioned a Caltrans non-payment issue, to 
further discuss later. 
 
Item #2: Approval of Minutes 

April 15, 2009 Meeting Minutes:  
Motion: Mr. Jesus Vargas; Second: Mr. Eddy Lau; Opposed: None; Approved: By consensus. 
Mr. Vargas asked that “via telephone” be added to Ms. Fonseca’s name on page 1. [NOTE: Edit was made.] 
May 20, 2009 Meeting Minutes: 
Vote deferred until July 15, 2009, to provide the council opportunity for review. Mr. Guerrero requested that the 
minutes be distributed to council members at least 10 business days prior to the next meeting each month in 
order to give the council time to review. Mr. Guerrero also requested that his comments about wanting to see 
the “real list” be added to 05-20-09 minutes. [NOTE: Edit was made; see A&E Update p. 3.] 
 
Item #3: District 4 Updates 

Construction Update: 
Ms. Barbara Condie referred to the documents “Forecast of Upcoming Construction Projects in District 4 as of 
June 14, 2009” and “Awarded Projects in District 4 as of June 14, 2009” to update the council on this topic. 
Referring to the section “Advertised and Upcoming Projects,” she updated the council that EA #1E3801 was a 
40-day job for $530,000, and bids were opening today [June 17th].  The UDBE goal for this project is 5%. 
Referring to the section “Projects Bid Opened/Currently Awaiting Award,” Ms. Condie reported that two 



June 17, 2009 D4 SBC Meeting Minutes  2 
(07-27-09 for distribution to SBC members) 

contracts had been awarded: EA #s2S6201 and 177901, both on 6-15-09. Drawing the council’s attention to EA 
#0G0001, Mr. Eddy Lau noted that Watkin & Bertolussi, Inc. had for the first time achieved 5.5% DVBE. Mr. 
Jesus Vargas asked if the state of the State impacts any of those Ready-to-List, and Ms. Condie said that it could 
impact jobs that were not funded during the previous fiscal year. Ms. Condie also drew the council’s attention to 
the format change to the Construction report showing a column for “U/DBE” Goals. Mr. Camacho suggested 
that the “/” be removed from the column heading, and Mr. Finney said that he would have it removed. The 
council then had a long conversation about UDBE goals and requirements, and the council members remained 
confused. Mr. Camacho suggested that the D4 SBC formally request a reading from HQ of how to interpret the 
race conscious/ race neutral goals with regards to goal setting and portray it on D4's monthly reports. Mr. 
Guerrero said that Mr. Camacho should bring this up in the Construction committee at the statewide meeting 
tomorrow. Mr. Finney agreed that the Statewide SBC meeting was the appropriate forum. Mr. Vargas suggested 
that HQ evaluate what would be needed to amend the construction contracts to extract the appropriate DBE 
information. Mr. Crosby suggested that the council members attend the statewide SBC meetings and bring up 
this topic there. Mr. Finney offered to get a copy of the Special Notice detailing the UDBE requirements for the 
council’s reference to assist them in formulating the action item question, and Mr. McElhinney agreed that this 
would be useful. After this document was distributed, Mr. Guerrero commented that he does not see a 
requirement for primes to report usage of DBEs, making it impossible for Caltrans to report DBE usage. Mr. 
Guerrero said that because Hispanics would never have been counted, at the end of the year Hispanics would 
show as underutilized. Mr. Guerrero said that the Pacific Legal Foundation would be "all over Caltrans" if 
Caltrans did not comply with federal regulations and had "deliberately omitted DBEs." Mr. White said that he 
would formulate the action item based on today's discussion and forward it to Mr. Guerrero for approval. [Mr. 
Guerrero approved the following language: “Caltrans does not track DBE participation (only UDBE), at the end 
of the year it would report -0- participation. If you achieve -0- participation by race neutral means, and fail to 
meet the race neutral goal, you have to go to a race conscious goal.   Is this correct?” Statewide Action Item 
#1709b.] Mr. Vargas asked if this document contains material that could be used as boilerplate for federally 
funded projects, and Mr. Finney responded that it probably could not. He suggested that Mr. Vargas direct his 
question to Mr. Art Duffy in Local Assistance. Mr. Vargas then asked if the council could get a report on the 
AGC lawsuit against Caltrans related to UDBE guidelines, and Mr. White said that this subject would be 
covered at the statewide meeting on Friday. Ms. Barbara Condie of the Office Engineer said that the 
specifications were currently under revision and a plain language spec would be released in June 2010. Mr. 
Finney reported on the outreach for two Doyle Drive contracts: a utility contract and a plant propagation 
contract. These were Emergency Limited Bid (ELB) contracts. Regarding the $19M utility contract, of the 11 
prime contractors invited out to bid, 6 of them submitted a bid of “two zeros”: $0 on time and material markups 
and $0 on mobilization. At this point, it is the sole discretion of the Department to choose the contractor. The 
method that Caltrans decided upon was to “draw straws.” Each contractor was given a ping pong ball. Each 
contractor wrote his or her name on a ball; then the balls were shaken in a concrete test cylinder. With all of the 
contractors present, an ex-PIO officer drew a ball out. The ball chosen belonged to Ghilotti Brothers 
Construction. Mr. Finney said that the contractors appreciated this approach for its openness and because it gave 
each of them an equal chance. Mr. Finney noted that this project does not have federal money and is waiting for 
a vote by MTC to allocate in the funding. Regarding the plant propagation contract, 6 potential bidders were 
contacted based on their experience, 1 chose not to participate, 4 attended the bid meeting, and 2 contractors 
ultimately submitted bids. SBE Go Native was the low bidder, but subsequently decided not to perform the 
work. SBE Hanford has indicated that it will perform the work. Caltrans is waiting on MTC to allocate in the 
funding for the plant propagation contract, as well. Mr. Finney said that there were 2 ELB contracts coming up 
in July: the first is a geotechnical contract for soil mixing and the other is a building stabilization contract. Mr. 
Camacho asked if Doyle Drive was an ARRA funded project, and Mr. Finney said it was partially funded by 
ARRA. Mr. Camacho asked how the determination was made that this project would be SBE-targeted only, and 
Mr. Crosby said it was because it was a state-funded Emergency Limited Bid project. Mr. Guerrero asked what 
the emergency was, and Mr. Finney replied that Caltrans was using a "best interest of the state" determination 



June 17, 2009 D4 SBC Meeting Minutes  3 
(07-27-09 for distribution to SBC members) 

regarding seismic safety. Mr. Camacho asked where MTC got its funding, and Mr. Finney said that it was toll 
money. Mr. Lau said that the no DBEs could participate strongly in the tunneling work. Mr. Lau asked Mr. 
Finney if the 6 bidders on the Doyle Drive utility contract came in with SBE participation, and Mr. Finney said 
that it wasn't required to be submitted at bid. Mr. Lau suggested that SBE participation could have been used as 
a tie-breaker, and Mr. Finney responded that that was not an option. Mr. Lau observed that Caltrans rules and 
regulations favor SBEs over DBEs. Mr. McElhinney said that he has not given up on DBE utilization in the 
Ghilotti Brothers contract and that Caltrans will work closely with the prime. Mr. Lau suggested that it was a 
waste of time for subs to attend outreaches if primes are not required to list them. Mr. Finney replied that it was 
not a waste of time: just because primes did not list subs at time of bid, the subs could be added at any point. 
Mr. Guerrero said that adding subs after bid was unlawful, and Mr. Finney, Ms. Condie, and Mr. White said that 
this was allowed in ELB contracts. Mr. Finney asked the council to forward to him names of potential ELB 
contractors. Mr. Finney said that he had seen evidence of primes listing subs even though it was not required, 
and he emphasized that Caltrans had been challenging the council to help with recruitment of subs. Mr. 
McElhinney asked Mr. Finney to follow up on the ELBs. Mr. Guerrero asked what authority Caltrans was 
following to add subs after bid, and Mr. Finney said the authority was the Public Contract Code. Mr. Anziano 
said that he had already supplied Mr. Guerrero with documentation of the exception that Caltrans was following 
in the Subcontracting Act. 
 
Statewide Action Item #1709b for Mr. Guerrero & Mr. Camacho 
 
Maintenance Update: 
Mr. Stanley Ng referred to the documents “District 4 Emergency Contracts Small Business Utilization FY 08/09 
Report - Director’s Orders Force Account (dated 6/9/09)”, “District Director’s Orders Force Account (dated 
6/9/09),” and “Director’s Orders Informal Bid (dated 6/9/09)” to brief the council on this topic. Referring to the 
first page of the Director’s Orders Force Account report, Mr. Ng reported that of $32.2M, 77% was awarded to 
Non-SBEs, 19% to SBEs, and 4% to DVBEs. Mr. Ng pointed out that the Ghilotti Brothers contract for $19M is 
one of the Doyle Drive contracts. Mr. Vargas asked about the other Doyle Drive contract, and Mr. Ng clarified 
that Hanford had replaced Go Native as the prime for this $600,000 contract. On the second page of the 
Director’s Order Emergency Force Account report, Mr. Ng said that updates from last month are highlighted in 
yellow; these are the two Doyle Drive contracts, and Go Native should be replaced with Hanford. Mr. Camacho 
pointed out that subcontractor Thomas & Pratt is out of business. Referring to the District Director’s Orders 
Force Account report, Mr. Ng reported that of $3.9M, 53% had been awarded to SBEs, 0% to Non-SBEs, and 
47% Not Yet Awarded. Mr. White noted that 100% of contracts to date had been awarded to SBEs. Referring to 
the Director’s Orders Informal Bid, of $860,000 69% had been awarded to SBEs and 31% to Non-SBEs.  
 
Design Update: 
Ms. Culik-Caro reported that two prospective bidders had been found to submit bids on EA #2L1701. The bid 
opening date was 5-21-09, and the most qualified bidder was SBE Amland Corporation for $105,000. Ms. 
Culik-Caro also reported that because Caltrans had been receiving such favorable bids,  Caltrans was able to 
award an additional contract, EA #2L2801. EA #2L2801 had a bid opening date of 5-14-09, and the most 
qualified bidder was SBE Team Ghilotti for $83,750. Mr. McElhinney highlighted the fact that Caltrans was 
able to provide an additional contracting opportunity as a result of receiving favorable bids on the other Minor 
B contracts. He noted that the firms were diverse and the work was varied on the projects awarded in fiscal year 
08/09. Mr. Stewart Ng and Ms. Culik-Caro projected that there would be 40% fewer projects in fiscal year 
09/10. Mr. McElhinney asked that Design present a list at the next meeting of upcoming projects. Mr. Vargas 
asked about SBE Team Ghilotti, and Ms. Culik-Caro said that she would find out more details on this. 
 
A&E Update: 
Ms. Trinity Nguyen referred to the following reports to brief the council on this topic: “Recently Executed A&E 



June 17, 2009 D4 SBC Meeting Minutes  4 
(07-27-09 for distribution to SBC members) 

Contracts (6/15/09),” “Recently Executed Non-A&E Contracts (6/15/09),” “Upcoming New A&E Contracts 
(6/15/09),” and “Upcoming New Non-A&E Contracts (6/15/09)." Ms. Nguyen noted the addition of the 
RNDBE and UDBE columns since last month's meeting. As of yet, there have been no contracts executed under 
this new program. In the section "Upcoming New A&E Contracts," Ms. Nguyen noted that 04-NEW301-09, 04-
NEW286-08, and 04NEW300-09 are anticipated to be advertised in August and June under the new program.  
Regarding $2.5M contract #04A3237, the top ranked consultant was Psomas. Mr. McElhinney noted that 
Caltrans has been working with the San Francisco County Transportation Authority to advertise an On-Call 
outreach contract, similar to the Toll Bridge outreach contract (with Pat Padilla & Associates), for the Doyle 
Drive Project to help with outreach. Referring to the "Upcoming New Non-A&E Contracts" section, Ms. 
Nguyen highlighted three contracts that are part of the SF Bay Area Media Buy Out for the Bay Bridge Labor 
Day Closure: #04A3313 for 04NEW314-09 and #04A3322 for 04NEW316-09 (top ranked consultant is SBE 
O'Rourke) and #04A3321 for 04NEW315-09 (top ranked consultant is SBE/DBE TMD Group). The CMAS 
process is not available for these contracts, and Consultant Services is using the emergency contract process. 
 
Toll Bridge Program Update: 
Mr. Tony Anziano, Mr. Derek Pool, and Ms. Pat Padilla updated the council on the Toll Bridge Program. 
Referring to the "Advertised and Upcoming Projects" section of Construction's "Forecast" report, Mr. Anziano 
said that YBI Transition Structure contract #0120S1 for $167M contract has a bid opening date delayed until 
December 2009. Regarding the Media Buy Out contracts in the "Upcoming New Non-A&E Contracts" section 
of the A&E report, Mr. Anziano highlighted that these were packaged with the intent of extracting work out of 
larger contracts to create opportunities for SBE primes. Mr. Pool said that this month there were no changes on 
the commitment reports; however, next month the council can expect to see the first sample draft of attainment 
reports reflecting actual dollars paid. Ms. Padilla said that the attainment reports track the efforts of prime 
contractors. With this information, Caltrans can address with prime contractors discrepancies between 
commitment and attainment. Mr. Pool reported that in partnership with MCM Construction the Toll Bridge 
Program completed two classes and received very good feedback. Ms. Padilla said that the classes were called 
"Essential Contractors Part 1 and Part 2." Seventeen contractors attended Part 1, and all 17 plus 5 more attended 
Part 2. The contractors were not necessarily active contractors on the Toll Bridge project. Ms. Padilla 
acknowledged the efforts of MCM in developing the curriculum, presenting the material, and entertaining 
questions from attendees. Six additional courses will be offered this year. Mr. Pool noted that Ms. Padilla would 
also be presenting information on women-owned businesses (WBEs) that had been requested by Mr. Vargas. 
Ms. Padilla handed out the "Toll Bridge Small Business Program Action Item Response" document and 
explained that this reflected the WBEs currently participating on the 3 Toll Bridge Project contracts: 15 WBEs 
on YBI Detour, 9 on OTD 1, and 11 on SAS. Ms. Padilla noted that these firms were not necessarily certified 
WBEs. Ms. Padilla said that this document represents a one-time response to the request for information on 
WBE firms, but any future reports on WBEs would be contingent on amendments to the SB DGS database 
which does not currently track gender or ethnicity information. Mr. Vargas thanked Ms. Padilla for preparing 
the report on WBEs and said that he would be making a very positive report to WTS. Mr. Vargas asked what 
WTS could do to have DGS modify their database, and Ms. Padilla suggested that he contact DGS. Mr. Crosby 
said that collecting this information may be prohibited, and Mr. Anziano said that if it is general information 
rather than project specific it would be okay to do. Mr. White suggested that DGS make any modifications upon 
recertification.  Regarding the request by Mr. Guerrero to amend the reports to include the lower tier 
subcontractors, Ms. Padilla said that this information is not contained in the bid documents so a letter has been 
sent out to the projects to collect that data. Once the data is collected, the attainment reports will be amended to 
reflect lower tier participation.  
 
Proposed Service Contracts over $5,000 
Ms. Augusta Solano referred to the "Proposed Service Contracts over $5K (Maintenance, Administration, and 
Right of Way-June 17, 2009) to update the council. She said that contracts currently out to bid were highlighted 



June 17, 2009 D4 SBC Meeting Minutes  5 
(07-27-09 for distribution to SBC members) 

in green: re-roofing contract #04A3246 for $25K and roof replacement and culvert inspection contract 
#04A3242 for $120K. New contracts were highlighted in yellow: guardrail repair contract #04A3294 for 
$637,223 and on-call electrical pole restoration contract #04A3309. Mr. McElhinney noted that this report, 
which was requested by the council a couple of quarters ago, has a different intent from others presented to the 
council, in that once a contract is awarded it no longer appears on the "Proposed Service Contracts" report; and 
Mr. White emphasized that this report, as requested by the council, gives a very advanced look ahead at micro 
contracts that might be of interest for council members to report to associations in the community. Mr. White 
reminded the council that these contracts appear for only 10 days and interested parties should check the 
website regularly for advertisement. Ms. Solano added that a column called "Notes/Comments" had been added 
to the document. Mr. Camacho asked if the service contracts require bonding, and Ms. Solano said that she 
would find out the answer to this question.  
 
D4 Small Business Update:  
On May 22nd, D4 Small Business Program had a table and a booth at the Calmentor Annual Event. On June 
2nd, there was a Mandatory Outreach Event for Doyle Drive. An hour before the event, there was a meeting to 
discuss ways to make the event more effective and easier. There were 22 primes and 15 subs in attendance.  On 
June 30th, Director Kempton, District Director Sartipi, Ms. Trinity Nguyen, and Mr. Derek Pool attended the 
WTS Seminar in Mission Bay and received the Rosa Parks Diversity Award. On June 4th, Mr. Crosby reported 
attending a Doyle Drive outreach at which there were 4 contractors and 1 sub. Caltrans is hiring a consultant to 
do DBE tracking, and there was a meeting on June 16th to review the RFQs. On July 8th there will be a 
mandatory outreach for the 4th bore of the Caldecott Tunnel at the Park Plaza Hotel and details on this will be 
forthcoming. On July 23rd there will be a Quarterly Outreach at 1515 Clay Street from 10-1. On June 18th there 
will be a pre-bid meeting in the Presidio for the tree relocation.  
 
Item #4: Review of Action Items  

Mr. Brian White announced that Mr. Dan Hess had retired as Deputy District Director of Administration. Mr. 
White drew the council's attention to request by Ms. Diana LaCome on p. 2 of the 5-20-09 minutes and noted 
that Ms. Olivia Fonseca in response had prepared a "California Unified Certification Program (CUCP) 
Certifying Agencies" report showing the status and number of applications each agency has. Mr. White then led 
a review of the action items carried over from the 05-20-09 SBC meeting. Action Item #1609 is ongoing:  
Because Mr. Eddy Lau had already left the meeting, Mr. Stewart Ng deferred discussion of the action item until 
a time when Mr. Lau was present. 
 
Item #5: New Business  

Mr. Rick Ohlrich announced that the next section in the Construction Contracting Program is next Tuesday and 
Wednesday on bid estimating, project management, and navigating the Caltrans website. He thanked everyone 
for getting the word out and reported that the class has the highest pre-registration yet for this particular module. 
The next class being offered is on bonding, and Mr. Ohlrich said that details would be forthcoming. Mr. 
McElhinney thanked Mr. Vargas and WTS for the recognition given to Caltrans by Assemblywoman Fiona Ma 
and Assemblyman Tom Ammiano. Ms. Leslie Sakai announced the AAAE event on SFIA on June 23rd at 
Canton Restaurant in San Francisco at 6pm. Mr. Camacho asked for another meeting with Mr. Moskowitz, and 
Mr. McElhinney said that the council would have to work out the timing of that meeting during the next quarter. 
Mr. Camacho commended Mr. Dennis Turchon and Mr. Nidal Tuqan for their achievements thus far. 
 
Item #6: Adjourn  

Mr. McElhinney adjourned the June meeting at 3:15 pm and announced that the July D4 SBC meeting would be 
on Wednesday, July 15th, 2009, at 1pm in the Executive Conference Room. 
 

 



June 17, 2009 D4 SBC Meeting Minutes  6 
(07-27-09 for distribution to SBC members) 

District 4 Small Business Council Action Items as of 6-17-09: 
 

No. Item Assignee Date  Status 
1609 Mr. Lau asked that Caltrans provide 

performance records to find out if work has 
been contracted out to DBEs for the design 
phase of Doyle Drive. On 4-15-09, Mr. Lau 
clarified that what he is asking is 1) whether 
Local Assistance is addressing SFCTA's 
compliance with the DBE goals and 2) why 
the CM contract that was announced at 
SFTCA's outreach did not show up on Mr. 
Blampied's report. 

Mr. Stewart Ng  3-18-09 Ongoing 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



June 17, 2009 D4 SBC Meeting Minutes  7 
(07-27-09 for distribution to SBC members) 

District 4 Small Business Council Items Deferred to Statewide Council as of 6-17-09: 
 

No. Item Assignee Date  Status Comments 

1706 DDD Hess will examine existing web-
based registration for contractors with 
Office of Civil Rights 

Ms. LaCome 4/12/06 Ongoing   

3206 Elevate the concerns of the District 4 
Small Business council regarding 
Caltrans” plan to implement the new 
insurance limits on January 1, 2007. 

Ms. LaCome 9/13/06 Ongoing   
 

1607 Mr. Finney agreed to research whether 
supply line items may be separated out 
of Prime contracts. 

Mr. Ramirez 3/14/07 Ongoing   

2008 Reevaluation of the Good Faith Effort 
(GFE) Process for DBE and DVBE 
Outreach by HQ Civil Rights 

Ms. LaCome 4-16-08 Ongoing  

2508b Mr. Guerrero wanted to know how 
quickly newly certified small 
businesses--who submit their names 
“via the web”---get on D4 
Maintenance’s Emergency Contact 
Information list 

Mr. Guerrero 4-16-08 Ongoing   

2908 Mr. Guerrero requested that that all of 
the action items deferred to Statewide 
SBC be followed up on and that the 
Statewide SBC report back to the D4 
SBC as to how these action items have 
been dealt with or resolved. 
 

Mr. Guerrero 4-16-08 Ongoing   

3408 Via the Professional Services 
Committee, follow up with DPAC 
regarding outcome of the DPAC task 
force assigned to update the selection 
criteria for interview panel members 
for service contracts. 

Mr. Lau 9-12-08 Ongoing  

1009b Mr. Guerrero requested that the HQ 
Office of Civil Rights ensure that 
DVBE goals are included in all state-
funded projects.  

Mr. Guerrero 1-21-09 Ongoing  

1709b Caltrans does not track DBE 
participation (only UDBE), at the end 
of the year it would report -0- 
participation. If you achieve -0- 
participation by race neutral means,  
and fail to meat the race neutral goal, 
you have to go to a race conscious 
goal.   Is this correct? 

Mr. Guerrero & 
Mr. Camacho 

6-17-09 New  

 



June 17, 2009 D4 SBC Meeting Minutes  8 
(07-27-09 for distribution to SBC members) 

District 4 Small Business Council Remaining 2009 Meetings 
 

Title Date & Time Location 
**July Meeting, District 4 
Small Business Council 

Wednesday, July 15, 2009 
1:00 pm – 2:30 pm 

Exec. Conference Room, District 4 Offices, 
Oakland 

August Meeting, District 4 
Small Business Council 

Wednesday, Aug. 19, 2009 
1:00 pm – 2:30 pm 

Exec. Conference Room, District 4 Offices, 
Oakland 

September Meeting, District 4 
Small Business Council 

Wednesday, Sept. 16, 2009 
1:00 pm – 2:30 pm 

Exec. Conference Room, District 4 Offices, 
Oakland 

October Meeting, District 4 
Small Business Council 

Wednesday, Oct. 21, 2009 
1:00 pm – 2:30 pm 

Exec. Conference Room, District 4 Offices, 
Oakland 

November Meeting, District 4 
Small Business Council 

Wednesday, Nov. 18, 2009 
1:00 pm – 2:30 pm 

Exec. Conference Room, District 4 Offices, 
Oakland 

December Meeting, District 4 
Small Business Council 

Wednesday, Dec. 23, 2009 
1:00 pm – 2:30 pm 

Exec. Conference Room, District 4 Offices, 
Oakland 

 
 

[Schedule also available online at http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/smallbusiness/sbc.htm.] 
 

** July meeting was cancelled.  


